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Report of Independent Auditors

To The Regents of the University of California:

In our opinion, based upon our audits and the report of other auditors, the financial statements listed in
the accompanying index which collectively comprise the financial statements of the University of
California (the “University”), a component unit of the State of California, present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position and plans’ and trust’s fiduciary net position of the University,
its aggregate discretely presented component units, and the University of California Retirement System
(the “Plans™) and the University of California Retiree Health Benefit Trust (the “Trust™), respectively, at
June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows of the University
and its component units, and the changes in the Plans’ and the Trust’s fiduciary net position for the
years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the University’s management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit
the financial statements of the UC Berkeley Foundation, which represents 24 and 23 percent of the
assets, 24 and 23 percent of the net position, and 19 and 19 percent of the operating revenues of the
University of California campus foundations as of and for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Those financial statements were audited by other auditors whose report thereon has been
furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the UC Berkeley
Foundation included in the aggregate discretely presented component units, is based upon the report of
the other auditor. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The financial statements of the
University’s component units were not audited in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
and the report of the other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 11,
2012 on our consideration of the University’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters for the year ended June 30, 2012. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not
to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should
be considered in assessing the results of our audits.

The accompanying Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the required supplementary information
on the University's Schedule of Funding Progress for UCRP and the Retiree Health Plan on pages 3
through 23 and page 89, respectively, are required by accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
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considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in the
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the University’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Summary Schedule
of Expenditures of Federal Awards and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for the year ended
June 30, 2012 are presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The Summary Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The Summary Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves
and other additional procedures, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the Summary Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards are fairly stated in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

’PWWWM» LLF

October 11, 2012, except for our report on the Summary Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
and Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards for which the date is February 11, 2013



Management’s Discussion and Analysis v

The objective of Management’s Discussion and Analysis is to help readers of the University of California’s financial statements
better understand the financial position and operating activities for the year ended June 30, 2012, with selected comparative
information for the years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010. This discussion has been prepared by management and should be
read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes to the financial statements. Unless otherwise indicated years
(2010, 2011, 2012, 2013, etc.) in this discussion refer to the fiscal years ended June 30.

The University of California’s financial report communicates financial information for the University of California (the
University), the University of California campus foundations (campus foundations), the University of California Retirement
System (UCRS) and the University of California Retiree Health Benefit Trust (UCRHBT) through five primary financial
statements and notes to the financial statements. Three of the primary statements, the statements of net position, the statements
of revenues, expenses and changes in net position and the statements of cash flows, present the financial position, changes

in financial position and cash flows for the University and the affiliated campus foundations. The financial statements for the
campus foundations are presented discretely from the University. Two of the primary statements, the statements of plans’ and
trust’s fiduciary net position and the statements of changes in plans’ and trust’s fiduciary net position, present the financial
position and operating activities for UCRS and UCRHBT. The notes to the financial statements provide additional information
that is essential to a full understanding of the financial statements.

THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

The University of California, one of the largest and most acclaimed institutions of higher learning in the world, is dedicated to
excellence in teaching, research, health care and public service. The University has annual resources of nearly $24.0 billion and
encompasses ten campuses, five medical schools and medical centers, four law schools and a statewide Division of Agriculture
and Natural Resources. The University is also involved in the operation and management of three national laboratories for the
U.S. Department of Energy (DOE).

Campuses. The ten campuses are located in Berkeley, Davis, Irvine, Los Angeles, Merced, Riverside, San Diego, San Francisco,
Santa Barbara and Santa Cruz. All of the campuses, except San Francisco, offer undergraduate, graduate and professional
education; the San Francisco campus is devoted exclusively to graduate and professional education in health sciences.

3 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



Health sciences. The University operates one of the nation’s largest health science and medical training programs.
The instructional program is conducted in 16 health professional schools on six campuses. Our health programs include
five medical centers, two dental schools, three nursing schools, two public health schools and two pharmacy schools,

in addition to a school of optometry and a school of veterinary medicine. The University’s medical schools play a leading
role in the development of health services and advancement of medical science and research.

Law schools. The University has law schools at Berkeley, Davis, Irvine and Los Angeles. Also, the Hastings College of the Law
in San Francisco is affiliated with the University, although not included in the financial reporting entity.

Agriculture and Natural Resources. The Division of Agriculture and Natural Resources is a statewide research and public service
organization that serves a large and diverse agricultural community. The division conducts studies on the Berkeley, Davis

and Riverside campuses, at nine research and extension centers and on private land in cooperation with California producers.
In addition, research and educational programs are conducted in each of the state’s 58 counties.

University Extension. The foremost continuing education program of its kind in size, scope and quality of instruction,
University Extension offers almost 20,000 self-supporting courses statewide and in several foreign countries.

National laboratories. Under contract with the U.S. Department of Energy, the University operates and manages the Ernest
Orlando Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory (LBNL) in California. The University is a member in two separate joint
ventures, Los Alamos National Security, LLC (LANS) and Lawrence Livermore National Security, LLC (LLNS), that operate
and manage the Los Alamos National Laboratory (LANL) and Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (LLNL), respectively,
under contracts directly with the DOE. The laboratories conduct broad and diverse basic and applied research in nuclear
science, energy production, national defense and environmental and health areas.

The University’s Financial Position

$51,973
$49,813

FUPLYIN  $46,589
$38,367

$42,308

$34,104
$24,931 $30,048
$21,289 $27,238
$18,531
$19,765  $19,351
$17,869
9,665
s $9359 49922 $9173 8759  $8,707
2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010 2012 2011 2010
ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS LIABILITIES NET POSITION
Current [ Noncurrent and deferred outflows Net position  in millions of dollars

The statement of net position presents the financial position of the University at the end of each year. It displays all
of the University’s assets, deferred outflows and liabilities. The difference between assets, deferred outflows and liabilities
is net position.
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The major components of the assets, liabilities and net position as of 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010
ASSETS
Investments $18,293 $18,259 $15,953
Investment of cash collateral 1,631 2,043 2,538
Accounts receivable, net 3,416 2,990 3,043
Capital assets, net 25,184 23,710 22,463
Other assets 3,380 2,764 2,592
Total assets 51,904 49,766 46,589
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows from interest rate swap agreements 69 47 64
Total deferred outflow of resources 69 47 64
LIABILITIES
Debt, including commercial paper 17,335 14,378 12,943
Securities lending collateral 1,631 2,043 2,539
Obligation to UCRP 1,919 1,725 1,608
Obligations for retiree health benefits 6,448 5,257 3,774
Other liabilities 6,771 6,645 6,374
Total liabilities 34,104 30,048 27,238
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 11,360 11,162 10,794
Reserved for minority interests 47 31 19
Restricted:
Nonexpendable 1,057 1,035 997
Expendable 5,505 5,944 5,024
Unrestricted (100) 1,593 2,517
Total net position $17,869 $19,765 $19,351

The University’s Assets and Deferred Outflows

Other assets $3,380

Capital assets, net $25,184

The University’s total assets have grown to $51.9 billion in 2012, compared to $49.8 billion in 2011 and $46.6 billion in 2010.
Generally, over the past two years, capital assets have increased while investments have fluctuated consistent with market

performance.
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Investments $18,293

Investment of cash collateral $1,631

Accounts receivable, net $3,416
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Investments

Investments held by the University are principally carried in three investment pools, the Short Term Investment Pool (STIP),
the Total Return Investment Pool (TRIP) and the General Endowment Pool (GEP). Cash for operations and bond proceeds
for construction expenditures are invested in STIP. The University uses STIP to meet operational liquidity needs. TRIP allows
participating campuses the opportunity to maximize the return on long-term capital by taking advantage of the economies

of scale of investing in a large pool across a broad range of asset classes. TRIP is managed to a total return objective and is
intended to supplement STIP. The GEP is a balanced portfolio and the primary investment vehicle for individual endowments
and funds functioning as endowments.

The Regents of the University of California (The Regents) utilize asset allocation strategies that are intended to optimize
investment returns over time in accordance with investment objectives and at acceptable levels of risk. The GEP portfolio
return was a negative return of 0.7 percent in 2012 and a positive return of 20.2 percent in 2011. TRIP had positive returns
of 6.7 percent in 2012 and 11.2 percent in 2011. STIP had positive returns of 2.4 percent and 2.5 percent in 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Investment of cash collateral

The University participates in a securities lending program incorporating securities owned by both the University and UCRS
as a means to augment income. Cash collateral fluctuates in response to changes in demand from borrowers and the availability
of securities based upon the University’s asset allocation mix.

Capital assets, net

Capital spending continues at a brisk pace in order to provide the facilities necessary to support the University’s teaching,
research and public service mission and for patient care. These facilities include core academic buildings, libraries, student
services, housing and auxiliary enterprises, health science centers, utility plants and infrastructure, and remote centers for
educational outreach, research and public service. Total additions of capital assets were $3.0 billion in 2012 as compared
to $2.7 billion in 2011 and $2.5 billion in 2010.

Other assets

Other assets include cash, investments held by trustees, pledge receivables, note and mortgage receivables, inventories
and a receivable from the DOE.

Deferred outflows of resources

Changes in fair values of the University’s interest rate swaps that are determined to be hedging derivatives are reported
as deferred outflows of resources.

The University’s Liabilities

Other liabilities $6,771

Obligation to UCRP $1,919
Debt, including commercial paper $17,335

Obligation for retiree
health benefits $6,448

. . 2012 in millions of dollars
Securities lending collateral $1,631

The University’s liabilities grew to $34.1 billion in 2012, compared to $30.0 billion in 2011 and $27.2 billion in 2010, due to
the issuance of additional debt and increases in the obligations for retiree pensions and health benefits.
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Debt, including commercial paper

Capital assets are financed from a variety of sources, including University equity contributions, federal and state support,
revenue bonds, bank loans, leases or structures that involve separate legal entities. Commercial paper and bank loans provide
interim financing for capital assets during the construction period.

Outstanding debt increased by $3.0 billion in 2012 and $1.4 billion in 2011. A summary of the activity follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011
ADDITIONS TO OUTSTANDING DEBT
General Revenue Bonds $2,460 $ 396
Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds 757
Limited Project Revenue Bonds 682
Capital leases 427 40
Other borrowings 205 32
Blended Component Unit Revenue Bonds 110
Commercial Paper 523 392
Bond premium, net 48 45
Additions to outstanding debt 3,773 2,344
REDUCTIONS TO OUTSTANDING DEBT
Refinancing and prepayments (277) (413)
Scheduled principal payments (444) (370)
Payments on other borrowings (71) (86)
Other, including deferred financing costs, net (24) (40)
Reductions to outstanding debt (816) (909)
Net increase in outstanding debt $2,957 $1,435

The University’s debt, which is used to finance capital assets, includes $1.3 billion of commercial paper outstanding at the
end of 2012, $800 million of commercial paper outstanding at the end of 2011 and $408 million at the end of 2010. Total debt

outstanding grew to $17.3 billion at the end of 2012, compared to $14.4 billion at the end of 2011 and $12.9 billion at the end
of 2010.

In 2012, $3.8 billion of debt was issued. In July 2011, the University issued General Revenue Bonds totaling $1.2 billion to
finance pension contributions to UCRP and operating costs on an interim basis. Due to favorable interest rates, the University
elected to issue taxable bonds for $935 million to make additional contributions to UCRP. Funding additional UCRP
contributions reduces the future growth of UCRP’s unfunded liability and allows the University to lower future employer
contributions. The University used $263 million of tax-exempt bonds as an interim financing vehicle for operations.

State appropriations of $500 million due in the first quarter was deferred until the end of 2012. The University repaid

the tax-exempt bonds of $263 million on July 1, 2012.

In 2012, the University also issued General Revenue Bonds of $1.3 billion to finance and refinance certain facilities and projects
of the University. Reductions to outstanding debt in 2012 were $816 million, including $277 million for one-time principal
payments for the refinancing or refunding of previously outstanding debt. The refinancing and refunding of previously
outstanding debt resulted in gross savings of $20.5 million.

In 2011, $2.3 billion of debt was issued. General Revenue Bonds of $396 million, Limited Project Revenue Bonds of

$682 million and Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds of $757 million were issued to finance and refinance certain
facilities and projects of the University. Reductions to outstanding debt in 2012 were $909 million, including $413 million
for one-time principal payments for the refinancing or refunding of previously outstanding debt. The refinancing and
refunding of previously outstanding debt resulted in gross savings of $19.1 million.

The University’s General Revenue Bond ratings are currently affirmed at Aal with a stable outlook by Moody’s Investors
Service, AA+ by Fitch with a stable outlook and AA by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlook. The University’s Limited
Project Revenue Bonds and Medical Center Pooled Revenue Bonds are currently affirmed at Aa2 with a stable outlook by

Moody’s Investors Service and AA- by Standard & Poor’s with a stable outlook. The University’s Limited Project Revenue Bonds
are rated AA by Fitch.
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Commercial paper borrowings increased by $523 million at June 30, 2012 and increased by $392 million at June 30, 2011.
Commercial paper has been used as interim financing for construction projects and equipment financing. In 2012 and 2011,
commercial paper was used for operations during the period the state deferred appropriation payments to the University.

In February 2012, the University entered into a $215 million revolving credit agreement with a major financial institution
for the purpose of providing additional liquidity.

Securities lending collateral

Under the securities lending program, the University records a liability to the borrower for cash collateral received and

held by the University for securities on loan at the end of the year. All borrowers are required to provide additional collateral
by the next business day if the value of the collateral falls to less than 100 percent of the fair value of the securities lent.
The amount of the securities lending collateral liability fluctuates directly with securities lending opportunities and the
investment of cash collateral.

Obligations to UCRP and for retiree health benefits

The University has a financial responsibility for pension benefits associated with its defined benefit plan and for retiree health
benefits. LBNL participates in the University’s defined benefit pension plan, although the DOE has an ongoing financial
responsibility to reimburse the University for LBNLs share of the obligation to UCRP. In addition, under certain circumstances
the University makes contributions to UCRP for LANL and LLNL retirees and, based upon contractual arrangements with

the DOE, is reimbursed by the DOE.

The University’s obligation to UCRP represents the unfunded portion of the actuarial determined annual required
contributions under the University’s funding policy. The funding policy contributions for 2012 were $2.2 billion, which
represents 26.35 percent of covered compensation. The funding policy contributions for 2011 were $1.9 billion, which
represents 23.3 percent of covered compensation. Total contributions to UCRP for 2012 and 2011 were $1.5 billion and
$1.4 billion, respectively.

The University’s obligation for retiree health benefits is based upon an actuarial determination of the annual retiree health
benefit expense. The University funds the retiree health expense through UCRHBT based upon a projection of benefits on

a pay-as-you-go basis. The increase of $1.2 billion and $1.5 billion in both 2012 and 2011, respectively, in the obligation for
retiree health benefits is due to the impact of amortizing the University’s unfunded obligation. The unfunded liability for the
campuses and medical centers as of the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation was $14.6 billion.

Other liabilities

Other liabilities consist of accounts payable, accrued salaries, other employee benefits, unearned revenue, funds held for others,
DOE laboratories’ liabilities, federal refundable loans, self-insurance and obligations under life income agreements.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA 11/12 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
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The University’s Net Position

— $11,360

$11,162
$10,794

Investment in capital assets,
net of related debt

57

Restricted, non-expendable $1,035
$997
Restricted, expendable $5,944
$5,024
| 547
Reserved for minority interests $31
$19
| s100
Unrestricted $1,593
$2,517
’ W 2012 2011 2010 in millions of dollars

Net position represents the residual interest in the University’s assets and deferred outflows after all liabilities are deducted.
The University’s net position is $17.8 billion in 2012, compared to $19.8 billion in 2011 and $19.4 billion in 2010. Net position
is reported in the following categories: invested in capital assets, net of related debt; reserved for minority interests; restricted,
nonexpendable; restricted, expendable; and unrestricted.

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

The portion of net position invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and the related outstanding debt used to
finance the acquisition, construction or improvement of these capital assets, is $11.4 billion in 2012, compared to $11.2 billion
in 2011 and $10.8 billion in 2010. The University continues to invest in its physical facilities.

Restricted, nonexpendable

Restricted, nonexpendable net position includes the corpus of the University’s permanent endowments and the estimated fair
value of certain planned giving arrangements. In 2012 and 2011, the increases in nonexpendable net position were principally
due to investment performance in excess of the income distribution.

Restricted, expendable

Restricted, expendable net position is subject to externally imposed restrictions governing their use. Net position may be spent
only in accordance with the restrictions placed upon them and may include endowment income and gains, subject to the
University’s spending policy; support received from gifts, appropriations or capital projects; trustee held investments; or other
third-party receipts. The increases or decreases in restricted, expendable funds are principally due to unrealized appreciation or
depreciation respectively in the fair value of investments related to restricted gifts and funds functioning as endowments.

Unrestricted

Under generally accepted accounting principles, net position that is not subject to externally imposed restrictions governing
their use must be classified as unrestricted for financial reporting purposes. Although unrestricted net position is not subject to
externally imposed restrictions, substantially all of the net position is allocated for academic and research initiatives or programs
and for capital and other purposes. As of June 30, 2012, unrestricted net position is in a deficit position. The decreases in both
2012 and 2011 are due to pension plan funding requirements and increases in the obligation for retiree health benefits.

9 MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



The University’s Results of Operations

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position is a presentation of the University’s operating results.

It indicates whether the financial condition has improved or deteriorated. In accordance with Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) requirements, certain significant revenues relied upon and budgeted for fundamental operational
support of the core instructional mission of the University are required to be recorded as nonoperating revenues, including
state educational appropriations, private gifts and investment income. A summarized comparison of the operating results
for 2012, 2011 and 2010, arranged in a format that matches the revenue supporting the core activities of the University
with the expenses associated with core activities, is as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012

2011

2010

OPERATING NONOPERATING

TOTAL

OPERATING NONOPERATING

TOTAL

OPERATING NONOPERATING

TOTAL

REVENUES
Student tuition and fees, net $ 3,237 $ 3,237 S 2811 $ 2,811 $ 2,401 $ 2,401
State educational appropriations $1,964 1,964 $2,651 2,651 $2,782 2,782
Pell grants 359 359 352 352 298 298
Grants and contracts, net 5,240 5,240 5,249 5,249 4,939 4,939
Medical centers, educational activities
and auxiliary enterprises, net 10,067 9 10,076 9,407 144 9,551 8,552 8,552
Department of Energy laboratories 1,014 1,014 977 977 910 910
Private gifts, net 805 805 816 816 794 794
Investment income, net 422 422 407 407 392 392
Other revenues 650 281 931 596 263 859 524 171 695
Revenues supporting core activities 20,208 3,840 24,048 19,040 4,633 23,673 17,326 4,437 21,763
EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits 16,617 16,617 15,764 15,764 15,003 15,003
Scholarships and fellowships 599 599 597 597 531 531
Utilities 280 280 281 281 285 285
Supplies and materials 2,382 2,382 2,108 2,108 2,186 2,186
Depreciation and amortization 1,477 1,477 1,405 1,405 1,267 1,267
Department of Energy laboratories 1,008 1,008 970 970 904 904
Interest expense 632 632 572 572 460 460
Other expenses 3,051 93 3,144 3,029 68 3,097 2,752 31 2,783
Expenses associated with core activities 25,414 725 26,139 24,154 640 24,794 22,928 491 23,419
Income (loss) from core activities $(5,206) $3,115 (2,091) $(5114) $3,993 (1,121)  $(5,602) $3,946 (1,656)
OTHER NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net appreciation (depreciation)
in fair value of investments (155) 1,082 771
Income before other changes in net assets (2,246) (39) (885)
OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION
State capital appropriations 140 190 160
Capital gifts and grants, net 198 247 189
Permanent endowments 12 16 11
Increase (decrease) in net position (1,896) 414 (525)
NET POSITION
Beginning of year 19,765 19,351 19,876
End of year $17,869 $19,765 $19,351

Revenues Supporting Core Activities
Revenues to support the University’s core activities, including those classified as nonoperating revenues, were $24.0 billion,

$23.7 billion and $21.8 billion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. These diversified sources of revenue increased by
$0.3 billion in 2012 and by $1.9 billion in 2011.
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The state of California’s educational appropriations, in conjunction with student tuition and fees, are the core components that
support the instructional mission of the University. Grants and contracts provide opportunities for undergraduate and graduate
students to participate in basic research alongside some of the most prominent researchers in the country.

Gifts to the University allow crucial flexibility to faculty for support of their fundamental activities or new academic initiatives.
Other significant revenues are from medical centers, educational activities and auxiliary enterprises such as student housing,
food service operations and parking.

Revenues in the various categories have increased and decreased over the last three years as follows:

Student tuition
and fees, net

State educational
appropriations

Grants and
contracts, net

Medical centers, net

Educational activities and

-

$5,249
$4,939

T e

auxiliary enterprises, net $2,990
$2,670
DOE laboratories | N NN < s
and other $1,573
operating revenues $1,434

other nonoperating revenues || NEGTNGINGEEGNE ;' 557
(Pell grants, private gifts, $1,838

net investment income and other) $1,655

H 2012 2011 2010 in millions of dollars

A major financial strength of the University includes a diverse source of revenues, including those from student fees, federally
sponsored grants and contracts, medical centers, the state of California, private support and self-supporting enterprises. The
variety of fund sources has become increasingly important over the past several years given the effects of the state’s financial
crisis that required reductions in both instructional and non-instructional programs.

Categories of both operating and nonoperating revenue that supported the University’s core activities in 2012 are as follows:

Other nonoperating revenues
(Pell grants, private gifts, investment
income, net and other) $1,867

]

Student tuition and fees, net $3,237
DOE laboratories and other
operating revenues $1,664
State educational appropriations, $1,964

Medical centers $6,826 ———
Grants and contracts, net $5,240

Educational activities and

e . 2012 in millions of dollars
auxiliary enterprises $3,250
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Student tuition and fees, net

Net student tuition and fees were $3,237 million, $2,811 million and $2,401 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
Student tuition and fees, net of scholarship allowances, increased by $426 million and $410 million in 2012 and 2011,
respectively. Scholarship allowances were $979 million in 2012, $830 million in 2011 and $666 million in 2010. The increases

in student tuition and fees over the past several years have been necessitated by the decline in state educational appropriations.
Consistent with past practices, approximately one-third of the revenue generated from these fee increases was used for financial
aid to mitigate the impact on low-income students.

In 2012 and 2011, enrollment grew by 0.9 percent and 1.1 percent, respectively. Mandatory tuition and fees for resident
undergraduates were not changed in 2012. Mandatory tuition and fees for resident undergraduates were increased 8.0 percent
and 15.0 percent effective summer 2011 and 2010, respectively. Additional mid-year increases in tuition of 9.6 percent effective
fall 2011 and 15.0 percent effective winter 2010 were approved in response to reductions in state educational appropriations.
Nonresident undergraduates and both resident and nonresident graduate students also experienced increases in mandatory
tuition and fees. Professional degree supplemental tuition varies by discipline, although most programs increased supplemental
tuition levels in 2012 and 2011.

State educational appropriations

Educational appropriations from the state of California were $2.0 billion, $2.7 billion and $2.8 billion in 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. State educational appropriations decreased in 2012 by $687 million and $132 million in 2011 as the state continues
to address its fiscal challenges and due to the expiration of federal stimulus programs. Federal stimulus funds of $107 million
and $448 million were received in 2011 and 2010, respectively. State resources for enrollment growth, faculty and staff
increases, and other inflationary cost increases were not available, leading to increases in student tuition and fees in 2011
and 2010.

Grants and contracts, net

Revenue from federal, state, private and local government grants and contracts — including an overall facilities and
administration cost recovery of $998 million, $992 million and $921 million in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively —
were $5,240 million in 2012, $5,249 million in 2011 and $4,939 million in 2010.

In 2012, federal grants and contracts revenue, including the federal facilities and administration cost recovery of
$749 million, were down slightly compared to 2011. This revenue is from a variety of federal agencies as indicated below:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010

Department of Health and Human Services $2,000 $2,100 $1,917
National Science Foundation 512 504 462
Department of Education 70 108 122
Department of Defense 253 235 227
National Aeronautics and Space Administration 97 9% 920
Department of Energy (excluding national laboratories) 110 103 89
Other federal agencies 305 242 229

Federal grants and contracts net revenue $3,347 $3,388 $3,136

Medical centers, educational activities and auxiliary enterprises, net

Medical center revenues, net of allowances, increased $265 million and $679 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively.
The revenue growth in both years is primarily due to improved reimbursement rates from third-party payors and
modest increases in outpatient volumes. During 2011, the medical centers received additional reimbursements related
to the Federal Medicaid Assistance Percentage contained in the American Reinvestment and Recovery Act for poor and
indigent patients.

Revenue from education activities, primarily physicians’ professional fees, net of allowances, grew by $156 million and
$310 million in 2012 and 2011, respectively. The growth is generally associated with an expanded patient base and higher
rates from third-party payors.
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Expenses Associated with Core Activities

Expenses associated with the University’s core activities, including those classified as nonoperating expenses, were $26.1 billion,
$24.8 billion and $23.4 billion in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Expenses increased in 2012 by $1.3 billion, primarily due

to higher salaries and benefits and increased supplies and materials costs. Expenses increased in 2011 by $1.4 billion, due to
higher salaries and benefits.

Expenses in the various categories over the last three years are as follows:

— $16,617

Salaries and benefits $15,764
$15,003

$599
Scholarships and -

fellowships $597
$531
T e
Supplies and materials $2,108
$2,186
e $1,477
Depreciation and -
amortization $1,405
$1,267
DOE aboratories, N <>
utilities and other $4,280
operating expenses $3,941
Interest expense and - $725
other nonoperating $640
expenses $491
H 2012 2011 2010 in millions of dollars

Categories of both operating and nonoperating expenses related to the University’s core activities in 2012 are as follows:

Interest expense and other
nonoperating expenses $725

DOE laboratories, utilities and
other operating expenses $4,339

Depreciation and

amortization $1,477 Salaries and benefits $16,617

Supplies and materials $2,382

Scholarships and

fellowships $599 2012 in millions of dollars
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Salaries and benefits

Over 63 percent of the University’s expenses are related to salaries and benefits. There are over 137,500 full-time equivalent
(FTE) employees in the University in 2012, excluding employees who are associated with LBNL whose salaries and benefits
are included as laboratory expenses. The number of employees in 2012 increased 1.0 percent from 2011. In 2012, salaries and
wages increased 1.0 percent due to an increase in the number of FTEs and 6.0 percent increase in the average salary per FTE.
Benefits increased by 7.4 percent due to higher health insurance and workers’ compensation costs. In 2011, salaries and wages
increased 4.3 percent due to scheduled salary increases for academic and union-represented employees. Benefits increased by
6.5 percent due to higher health insurance costs.

Scholarships and fellowships

The University places a high priority on student financial aid as part of its commitment to affordability. Scholarships and
fellowships, representing payments of financial aid made directly to students and reported as an operating expense, were flat

as compared to 2011, and were higher by $66 million in 2011 than in 2010, an increase of 12.4 percent. In addition, scholarship
allowances, representing financial aid and fee waivers awarded by the University, are also forms of scholarship and fellowship
costs that increased in 2012 by $136 million, or 13.1 percent, to $1.2 billion and increased in 2011 by 22.0 percent to

$1.0 billion. However, scholarship allowances are reported as an offset to revenue, not as an operating expense. On a combined
basis, as the University continues its commitment to provide financial support for needy students, financial aid in all forms
grew to $1.8 billion in 2012 from $1.6 billion in 2011 and $1.4 billion in 2010, an increase of $391 million over the past two
years, or 28.3 percent.

Supplies and materials

During 2012, overall supplies and materials costs increased by $274 million, or 13.0 percent, and decreased in 2011 by
$78 million, or 3.6 percent. In recent years, there has been inflationary pressure on the costs for medical supplies and
laboratory instruments and higher costs for general supplies necessary to support expanded research activity and increased
medical patient volumes. The University continues to find opportunities to manage the costs of supplies and materials
in light of reduced state appropriations.

Other expenses

Other expenses consist of a variety of expense categories, including travel, rent, insurance, legal settlements and repairs and
maintenance, plus any gain or loss on disposals of capital assets and other nonoperating expenses.

Operating Losses

In accordance with the GASB’s reporting standards, operating losses were $5.2 billion in 2012, $5.1 billion in 2011 and
$5.6 billion in 2010. The operating loss in 2012 was partially offset by $3.1 billion of net revenue that is required by the
GASB to be classified as nonoperating, but clearly supports core operating activities of the University. Expenses associated
with core activities in 2012 exceeded revenue available to support core activities by $2.1 billion.

The operating loss in 2011 was partially offset by $4.0 billion of net revenue that is required by the GASB to be classified
as nonoperating, but clearly supports core operating activities of the University. Expenses associated with core activities
in 2011 exceeded revenue available to support core activities by $1.1 billion.

Other Nonoperating Activities

The University’s other nonoperating activities, consisting of net appreciation or depreciation in the fair value of investments,
are noncash transactions and, therefore, are not available to support operating expenses.

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments

In 2012, the University recognized net depreciation in the fair value of investments of $155 million compared to net
appreciation of $1.1 billion during 2011 and net appreciation of $771 million during 2010. Equity markets showed strong
performance in both 2011 and 2010.
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Other Changes in Net Position

Similar to other nonoperating activities discussed above, other changes in net position are also not available to support the
University’s operating expenses in the current year. State capital appropriations and capital gifts and grants may only be used
for the purchase or construction of the specified capital assets. Only income earned from gifts of permanent endowments

is available in future years to support the specified program.

The University’s enrollment growth requires new facilities, in addition to continuing needs for renewal, modernization and
seismic correction of existing facilities. Capital appropriations from the state of California decreased by $50 million in 2012,
increased by $30 million in 2011 and decreased by $153 million in 2010. Capital appropriations are from bond measures
approved by the California voters.

The University's Cash Flows

The statement of cash flows presents the significant sources and uses of cash. A summary comparison of cash flows for 2012,
2011 and 2010 is as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010
Cash received from operations $ 18,878 $ 17,966 $16,160
Cash payments for operations (21,736) (19,955) (17,703)
Net cash used by operating activities (2,858) (1,989) (1,543)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 4,878 3,922 3,225
Net cash provided by operating
and noncapital financing activities 2,020 1,933 1,682
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (2,291) (1,111) (760)
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 223 (789) (1,262)
Net increase (decrease) in cash (48) 33 (340)
Cash, beginning of year 181 148 488
Cash, end of year $ 133 $ 181 $ 148

Cash in demand deposit accounts is minimized by sweeping available cash balances into investment accounts on a daily basis.
Due to the state’s financial crisis, some payments to the University were deferred in 2012 and 2011. For 2012 and 2011,
$500 million due in the first quarter of 2012 was deferred until the end of the year.

Cash provided by operating and noncapital financing activities ranged between $1.7 billion and $2.0 billion over the last three
years. In accordance with GASB requirements, certain cash flows relied upon for fundamental operational support of the core
instruction mission of the University are reported as noncapital financing activities, including state educational appropriations,
private gifts and grants, investment income and proceeds from debt and commercial paper issuance to finance pension
contributions to UCRP and operating costs on an interim basis. As state appropriations decline and contribution rates for
UCRP are increased to meet funding requirements, financing has been used by the University to fund pension contributions
to UCRP and operations on an interim basis.

Net cash of $2.3 billion, $1.1 billion and $0.8 billion was used in 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively, for capital and related
financing activities, primarily for purchases of capital assets and principal and interest payments, partially offset by sources
that include new external financing, state and federal capital appropriations and gifts for capital purposes.

The year-to-year changes in cash provided (used) by investing activities is largely the result of the routine timing of investment
purchases, sales and, to a lesser extent, investment income.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA CAMPUS FOUNDATIONS

Separate foundations at each individual campus provide valuable assistance in fundraising, public outreach and other support
for the missions of the campus and the University. Although independent boards govern each of these ten foundations, they are
affiliated with, and their assets are dedicated for, the benefit of the University of California.

The Campus Foundations’ Financial Position

The campus foundations’ statement of net position presents their combined financial position at the end of the year. It displays
all of the campus foundations’ assets, liabilities and net position. The difference between assets and liabilities are net position,
representing a measure of the current financial condition of the campus foundations.

The major components of the combined assets, liabilities and net position of the campus foundations at 2012, 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010
ASSETS
Investments $5,161 $5,152 $4,037
Investment of cash collateral 65 125 182
Pledges receivable, net 641 554 387
Other assets 153 149 139
Total assets 6,020 5,980 4,745
LIABILITIES
Securities lending collateral 65 125 182
Obligations under life income agreements 166 169 165
Other liabilities 254 276 214
Total liabilities 485 570 561
NET POSITION
Restricted:
Nonexpendable 2,586 2,441 2,107
Expendable 2,802 2,763 2,063
Unrestricted 147 206 14
Total net position $5,535 $5,410 $4,184

Investments remained flat in 2012 and increased by $1.1 billion in 2011 due to recovery of the equity markets. The Board of
Trustees for each campus foundation is responsible for its specific investment policy, although asset allocation guidelines are
recommended to campus foundations by the Investment Committee of The Regents. The Boards of Trustees may determine
that all or a portion of their investments will be managed by the University’s Chief Investment Officer. The Chief Investment
Officer managed $1.1 billion, $1.1 billion and $1.0 billion of the campus foundations’ investments at the end of 2012, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

Restricted, nonexpendable net position includes the corpus of the campus foundations’ permanent endowments and the
estimated fair value of certain planned giving arrangements. Restricted, expendable net position is subject to externally
imposed restrictions governing their use. Net position may be spent only in accordance with the restrictions placed upon them
and may include endowment income and investment gains, subject to each individual campus foundation’s spending policy;
support received from gifts; trustee held investments; or other third-party receipts. New gifts and net appreciation in the fair
value of investments were the primary reasons for the changes in value in 2012 and 2011.
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The Campus Foundations’ Results of Operations

The campus foundations’ combined statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position is a presentation of their
operating results for the year. It indicates whether their financial condition has improved or deteriorated during the year.
A summarized comparison of the operating results for 2012, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010

OPERATING REVENUES

Private gifts and other revenues $ 601 $ 884 $ 427
Total operating revenues 601 884 427

OPERATING EXPENSES

Grants to campuses and other expenses 618 513 595
Total operating expenses 618 513 595
Operating income (loss) (17) 371 (168)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment income 53 69 67

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments (95) 551 290

Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) (9) 17 3
Income (loss) before other changes in net position (68) 1,008 192

OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Permanent endowments 193 218 162
Increase (decrease) in net position 125 1,226 354

NET POSITION

Beginning of year 5410 4,184 3,830
End of year $5,535 $5,410 $4,184

Operating revenues generally consist of current-use gifts, including pledges and income from other fundraising activities,
although they do not include additions to permanent endowments and endowment income. Operating revenues fluctuate
based upon fundraising campaigns conducted by the campus foundations during the year.

Operating expenses generally consist of grants to University campuses, comprised of current-use gifts and endowment income
and other expenses, including gift fees. Grants to campuses typically follow the pattern indicated by private gift revenue;
however, the campus’ programmatic needs are also taken into consideration, subject to abiding by the restricted purposes

of gifts to the endowment and the amounts available for grants in any particular year.

Grants to the campuses can only be made when the cash is received and, in addition, also include endowment investment
income, classified as nonoperating income. Therefore, operating losses can occur when grants distributed to the campuses
in any particular year exceed private gift revenue.

The Campus Foundations’ Cash Flows

The campus foundations’ combined statement of cash flows presents the significant sources and uses of cash and cash
equivalents. A summary comparison of cash flows for 2012, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $(170) $ 51 $(191)
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 174 187 141

Net cash used by investing activities (7) (232) (35)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (3) 6 (85)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 104 98 183
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $101 $104 $ 98

Cash payments for grants are an operating activity, but these payments also include investment income which is an investing
activity. In addition, while the trend is for grants to campuses to coincide with contributions revenue, the timing may not
always occur in the same year.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA RETIREMENT SYSTEM (UCRS)

UCRS is a valuable component of the comprehensive benefits package offered to employees of the University. UCRS consists

of the University of California Retirement Plan (UCRP), a defined benefit plan for members; the University of California
Retirement Savings Program (UCRSP) that includes four defined contribution plans (Defined Contribution Plan, Supplemental
Defined Contribution Plan, 403(b) Plan and 457(b) Plan) to complement the defined benefit plan, with several investment
portfolio options for participants’ elective and non-elective contributions; and the California Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) Voluntary Early Retirement Incentive Plan (PERS-VERIP) for certain University employees that were members
of PERS who elected early retirement.

UCRS’ Financial Position and Result of Operations

The statement of plans’ fiduciary net position presents the financial position of UCRS at the end of the fiscal year. It displays

all of the retirement system’s assets, liabilities and net position. The difference between assets and liabilities are the net position
held in trust for pension benefits. These represent amounts available to provide pension benefits to members of UCRP and
participants in the defined contribution plans and PERS-VERIP. At June 30, 2012, the UCRS’ assets were $67.9 billion, liabilities
$9.5 billion and net position held in trust for pension benefits $58.4 billion, an increase of $0.2 billion from 2011. Net position
increased in 2011 by $9.5 billion from 2010.

The major components of the assets, liabilities and net position available for pension benefits for 2012, 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010
ASSETS
Investments $54,409 $54,218 $45,856
Participants’interests in mutual funds 4,427 4,488 3,462
Investment of cash collateral 7,545 7,729 10,112
Other assets 1,565 648 449
Total assets 67,946 67,083 59,879
LIABILITIES
Securities lending collateral 7,543 7,729 10,117
Other liabilities 1,938 1,138 1,076
Total liabilities 9,481 8,867 11,193
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS
Members’ defined benefit plan benefits 41,869 41,940 34,634
Participants’ defined contribution plan benefits 16,597 16,276 14,052
Total net position held in trust for pension benefits $58,466 $58,216 $48,686

The statement of changes in the plans’ fiduciary net position is a presentation of the UCRS’ operating results. It indicates
whether the financial condition has improved or deteriorated during the year. A summarized comparison of the operating
results for 2012, 2011 and 2010 is as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010
ADDITIONS (REDUCTIONS)
Contributions $3,102 S 2,694 $1,107
Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments (978) 8,542 4,244
Investment and other income, net 1,292 1,320 1,192
Total additions (reductions) 3,416 12,556 6,543
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments and participant withdrawals 3,125 2,987 2,618
Plan expenses 41 39 38
Total deductions 3,166 3,026 2,656
Increase in net position held in trust for pension benefits $ 250 $ 9,530 $3,887
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The Regents utilize asset allocation strategies that are intended to optimize investment returns over time in accordance
with investment objectives and at acceptable levels of risk. The overall investment gain based upon unit values for UCRS
was 0.8 percent in 2012 compared to an investment gain of 20.5 percent in 2011 and 11.8 percent in 2010.

The participants’ interests in mutual funds, representing defined contribution plan contributions to certain mutual funds on
a custodial plan basis, fluctuate based upon market performance of the mutual funds and participant investment elections.

UCRS participates in the University’s securities lending program as a means to augment income. All borrowers are required to
provide collateral and the University records a liability to the borrower for cash collateral received and held by the University

for securities on loan at the end of the year. Investments in cash collateral and the securities lending collateral liability fluctuate
in response to changes in demand from borrowers and the availability of securities based upon the UCRS asset allocation mix.

Contributions to UCRP in 2012 and 2011 were $2.1 and $1.8 billion, respectively, due to increased employer and employee
contribution rates and the additional deposits of $935 million and $1.1 billion made by the University to UCRP in 2012 and
2011, respectively.

Benefit payments and participant withdrawals were $138 million more in 2012 than in 2011 and $369 million more in 2011
than in 2010. Payments from UCRP increase each year due to a growing number of retirees receiving payments and cost-of-
living adjustments. Benefit payments from UCRSP fluctuate based upon member withdrawals. At the beginning of 2012,
there were 56,300 retirees and beneficiaries receiving payments from UCRS as compared to 54,000 at the beginning of 2011
and 51,500 at the beginning of 2010.

As of July 1, 2011, the date of the most recent actuarial report, UCRP’s overall funded ratio was 82.5 percent compared

to 86.7 percent as of July 1, 2010. The change in the funded status ratio for 2011 is attributable to updating the mortality
tables to reflect longer expected lives of retirees and recognition of investment losses from previous years. The decline in the
funded status for 2010 ratio is primarily attributable to the investment performance and the lack of employer and employee
contributions prior to April 2011.

Additional information on the retirement plans can be obtained from the 2012 annual reports of the University of California
Retirement System by writing to the University of California, Office of the President, Human Resources and Benefits,
Post Office Box 24570, Oakland, California 94623.
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THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT TRUST (UCRHBT)

The UCRHBT was established on July 1, 2007 to allow certain University locations — primarily campuses and medical

centers — that share the risks, rewards and costs of providing for retiree health benefits to fund such benefits on a cost-sharing
basis and accumulate funds on a tax-exempt basis under an arrangement segregated from University assets. The University
contributes toward retiree medical and dental benefits, although it does not contribute toward the cost of other benefits

available to retirees. The DOE laboratories do not participate in the UCRHBT, therefore the DOE has no interest in the trust’s
assets.

UCRHBT’s Financial Position and Result of Operations

The statement of trust’s fiduciary net position presents the financial position of the UCRHBT at the end of the fiscal year. It
displays all of the UCRHBT’s assets, liabilities and net position. The difference between assets and liabilities are the net position
held in trust for retiree health benefits. These represent amounts available to provide retiree health benefits to its participants.

The major components of the assets, liabilities and net position available for retiree health benefits for 2012, 2011 and 2010
are as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010

ASSETS
Investments $65 $28 $32
Other assets 30 46 39

Total assets 95 74 71
LIABILITIES

Total liabilities 5 3 2
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS

Total net position held in trust for retiree health benefits $90 $71 $69

The statement of changes in trust’s fiduciary net position is a presentation of the UCRHBT’s operating results. It indicates
whether the financial condition has improved or deteriorated during the year. Summarized operating results for 2012, 2011
and 2010 are as follows:

(in millions of dollars)

2012 2011 2010
ADDITIONS
Contributions $330 $288 $254
Total additions 330 288 254
DEDUCTIONS
Insurance premiums and payments 309 284 257
Plan expenses 3 2 2
Total deductions 312 286 259
Increase (decrease) in net position held in trust for retiree health benefits $18 $ 2 $ (5)

Contributions for retiree health benefits are made by the campuses and medical centers based upon projected pay-as-you-go
financing. The University acts as a third-party administrative agent on behalf of the UCRHBT to pay health care insurers and
administrators amounts currently due.

The retiree health benefits provided under the University’s plan and any liabilities related to the future funding requirements
for the retiree health benefits are reported by the University. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability for eligible participants
as of July 1, 2011, the date of the latest actuarial valuation, was $15.2 billion.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA 11/12 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 20


JTAO007
Typewritten Text
20


LOOKING FORWARD

The University of California is a world center of learning, known for generating a steady stream of talent, knowledge and social
benefits, and has always been at the center of Californias capacity to innovate. The excellence of its programs attracts the best
students, leverages hundreds of millions of dollars in state, federal and private funding and promotes discovery of new
knowledge that fuels economic growth.

The University’s state-funded budget for 2013 is $2.378 billion, up slightly from $2.272 billion for 2012. In May, the governor
identified a budget gap of $15.7 billion for the state of California. The budget package adopted by the governor and the
Legislature resolves about $8 billion of the gap through budget cuts. The 2013 state budget assumes adoption of the governor’s
revenue raising initiative (The Schools and Local Public Safety Protection Act of 2012 - Attorney General reference number
12-0009) on the November ballot, which would address about $5.6 billion of the gap. In the event that the governor’s revenue
raising initiative on the November ballot is not approved by the voters, the University’s state-funded budget for 2013 will be
reduced by $250 million. In addition, the University would lose a $125.4 million base budget adjustment in 2014 to cover the
delayed buy-out of 2013 tuition. The total $375.4 million budget reduction would lower the University’s state-funded budget
to $2.128 billion, down $1.129 billion from a high of $3.257 billion in 2008. In addition to the above, over the course of 2013,
the state will be deferring some payments to the University; $500 million due in the first quarter of 2013 will be deferred until
the end of 2013. Other deferrals are also possible.

The University remains highly competitive in attracting federal grants and contracts revenue, with fluctuations in the awards
received closely paralleling trends in the budgets of federal research granting agencies. Over two-thirds of the University’s
federal research revenue comes from two agencies, the Department of Health and Human Services, primarily through the
National Institutes of Health, and the National Science Foundation. Other agencies that figure prominently in the University’s
awards are the Department of Education, Department of Defense, the National Aeronautics and Space Administration and
the Department of Energy. While the federal government works through its own financial constraints, there is a bipartisan
effort underway to focus on innovation and competitiveness for the nation. In 2012, the University received approximately
$163 million in funding from federal economic stimulus funds made available by the American Recovery and Reinvestment
Act (ARRA), representing approximately 4.8 percent of the University’s federal grants and contract revenues in 2012. ARRA
funds are expected to be fully expended by 2014. The University is a unique national resource for helping the nation address
competitiveness and economic initiatives.

The University’s private support is a testament to its distinction as a leader in philanthropy among the nation’s colleges and
universities and the high regard in which its alumni, corporations, foundations and other supporters hold the University.
The level of private support underscores the continued confidence among donors in the quality of the University’s programs
and the importance of its mission. At the same time, private support in 2013 will likely continue to reflect the changes in the
economy and financial markets, the effect of which is not determinable at this time.

Additional, affordable and accessible student housing continues to be required in order to satisfy demand. Most campus
residence halls are occupied at design capacity. The University is responding to increased demand by building student housing
in the traditional manner, with housing fees set to generate sufficient revenue to cover direct and indirect operating costs and
debt service and by seeking development opportunities for privately owned housing on University campuses.

Currently, the University does not pre-fund retiree health benefits and provides for benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The unfunded liability for the campuses and medical centers as of the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation was $14.7 billion.

The Regents approved a new eligibility formula for the Retiree Health Plan for all employees hired on or after July 1, 2013,
and non-grandfathered members, that is based on a graduated formula using both a member’s age and years of Retirement Plan
service credit upon retirement, subject to collective bargaining for represented members.

UCRP costs are funded by a combination of investment earnings, employee member and employer contributions.

The unfunded liability for the campuses and medical centers as of July 1, 2011 actuarial valuation was $7.7 billion or

82.1 percent funded. As of July 1, 2012, the funded ratio is expected to decrease to approximately 78 percent. The total funding
policy contributions in the July 1, 2011 actuarial valuations represent 26.4 percent of covered compensation. Member and
employer contributions increased to 5 percent and 10 percent, respectively, of covered compensation in July 2012. The Regents
approved increasing employee member and employer contributions to 6.5 percent and 12 percent, respectively, in July 2013.
These contribution rates are below UCRP’s total funding requirements. The Regents also approved a new tier of pension
benefits applicable to employees hired on or after July 1, 2013, which would increase the early retirement age from 50 to 55, but
retain many of the current features of UCRP. The new tier would not offer lump sum cash outs, inactive member Cost of Living
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Adjustments (COLASs) or subsidized survivor annuities for spouses and domestic partners. These changes are subject
to collective bargaining for union-represented employees.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, effective for the University’s
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014. This Statement revises existing standards for measuring and reporting pension liabilities for
pension plans provided by the University to its employees. This Statement requires recognition of a liability equal to the net
pension liability, which is measured as the total pension liability, less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position.
The total pension liability is determined based upon discounting projected benefit payments based on the benefit terms and
legal agreements existing at the pension plan’s fiscal year end. Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted using
a single rate that reflects the expected rate of return on investments, to the extent that plan assets are available to pay benefits,
and a tax-exempt, high-quality municipal bond rate when plan assets are not available. This Statement requires that most
changes in the net pension liability be included in pension expense in the period of the change. As of June 30, 2012, the
University reported an obligation to UCRP of $1.9 billion, representing unfunded contributions to UCRP based upon the
University’s funding policy. Under GASB No. 68, the University’s obligation to UCRP is expected to increase.

The University’s medical centers have demonstrated very positive financial results, although they continue to face financial
and competitive challenges in their regional markets, along with the added costs and responsibilities related to their function
as academic institutions. The demand for health care services and the cost of providing them continue to increase significantly.
In addition to the rising costs of salaries, benefits and medical supplies faced by hospitals across the state, along with the

costs of maintaining and upgrading facilities, the University’s medical centers also face additional costs associated with new
technologies, biomedical research, the education and training of health care professionals and the care for a disproportionate
share of the medically underserved in California. Other than Medicare and Medi-Cal (California’s Medicaid program), health
insurance payments do not recognize the added cost of teaching in their payment to academic medical centers. Over the last
few years, Medicare margins have declined as a result of payment reductions. Changes to the Medi-Cal program will likely limit
or reduce the rates of payment growth to the medical centers in future years. Also, as a result of state legislation, the medical
centers face capital requirements to ensure that facilities can maintain uninterrupted operations following a major earthquake.
While the state has provided additional capital to meet these requirements, the level of support provided will not cover the full
cost to the University. Other sources of capital are required.

The continuing financial success of the medical centers is predicated on a multifaceted strategy, which includes competing in
commercial markets and offering high quality regional services. Positive results in commercial contracts have helped address
the lack of support for medical education and care for the poor. Further, the medical centers remain competitive in their
respective markets by reducing costs through improved efficiencies, making strategic investments and by expanding their
presence in the market through stronger links with other providers and payers. Payment strategies must recognize the need to
maintain an operating margin sufficient to cover debt, provide working capital, purchase state-of-the-art equipment and invest
in infrastructure and program expansion.

On March 23, 2010, the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) was signed into law. On March 30, 2010 the
Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2011 was signed, amending the PPACA (collectively the “Affordable Care
Act”). On June 29, 2012, the Supreme Court upheld the constitutionality of much of the Affordable Care Act. The Affordable
Care Act addresses a broad range of topics affecting the health care industry, including a significant expansion of health care
coverage. The coverage expansion is accomplished primarily through incentives for individuals to obtain and employers
to provide health care coverage and an expansion in Medicaid eligibility. The Affordable Care Act also includes incentives
for medical research and the use of electronic health records, changes designed to curb fraud, waste and abuse, and creates
new agencies and demonstration projects to promote the innovation and efficiency in the health care delivery system.
Some provisions of the health care reform legislation were effective immediately; others are being phased in through 2014.
The medical centers will likely be affected by the coverage expansion provisions that go into effect in 2014, the effect of which
is not determinable at this time.

The University must have a balanced array of many categories of facilities to meet its education, research and public service
goals and continues to assess its long-term capital requirements. The support for the University’s capital program will be
provided from a combination of sources, including the state of California, external financing, gifts and other sources.

Additional budget information can be found at http://universityofcalifornia.edu/news/budget/welcome.html. Additional
information concerning state budget matters and the state’s financial condition may be found on the website of the state
of California Department of Finance at http://www.dof.ca.gov.
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Certain information provided by the University, including written as outlined above or oral statements made by its
representatives, may contain forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
All statements, other than statements of historical facts, which address activities, events or developments that the University
expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future contain forward-looking information.

In reviewing such information, it should be kept in mind that actual results may differ materially from those projected or
suggested in such forward-looking information. This forward-looking information is based upon various factors and was
derived using various assumptions. The University does not undertake to update forward-looking information contained
in this report or elsewhere to reflect actual results, changes in assumptions or changes in other factors affecting such
forward-looking information.
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

At June 30,2012 and 2011 (in thousands of dollars)

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
CAMPUS FOUNDATIONS

2012 2011 2012 2011
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 133,264 $ 181,130 $ 101,296 S 104,220
Short-term investments 3,557,341 3,710,307 334,818 362,884
Investment of cash collateral 1,388,262 1,603,647 55,863 103,194
Investments held by trustees 305,721 74,949
Accounts receivable, net 3,416,380 2,989,589 23,062 20,273
Pledges receivable, net 48,829 54,101 141,644 133,562
Current portion of notes and mortgages receivable, net 34,827 32,359 10 10
Inventories 180,592 170,358
Department of Energy receivable 367,112 360,962
Other current assets 232,944 181,462 2,752 2,377
Current assets 9,665,272 9,358,864 659,445 726,520
Investments 14,735,057 14,548,358 4,826,399 4,788,985
Investment of cash collateral 242914 439,616 9,260 22,038
Investments held by trustees 1,275,336 947,900
Pledges receivable, net 59,981 68,371 499,490 420,338
Notes and mortgages receivable, net 316,509 315,554 1,394 978
Department of Energy receivable 184,996 147,349
Capital assets, net 25,183,718 23,710,277
Other noncurrent assets 239,624 229,260 24,608 21,632
Noncurrent assets 42,238,135 40,406,685 5,361,151 5,253,971
Total assets 51,903,407 49,765,549 6,020,596 5,980,491
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows from interest rate swap agreements 69,495 47,092
Total deferred outflow of resources 69,495 47,092
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 1,981,981 1,732,988 6,683 7,746
Accrued salaries 468,274 843,056
Employee benefits 598,670 552,716
Unearned revenue 874,163 889,573 25,188 45,228
Collateral held for securities lending 1,630,554 2,043,253 65,123 125,232
Commercial paper 1,322,810 799,810
Current portion of long-term debt 923,635 529,038
Funds held for others 262,984 258,437 196,734 205,110
Department of Energy laboratories' liabilities 46,505 121,919
Other current liabilities 1,063,698 987,691 26,594 22,662
Current liabilities 9,173,274 8,758,481 320,322 405,978
Federal refundable loans 234,786 231,223
Self-insurance 421,602 430,300
Obligations under life income agreements 24,706 26,856 146,175 147,332
Long-term debt 15,088,502 13,048,873
Obligation to UCRP 1,919,320 1,725,444
Obligations for retiree health benefits 6,447,678 5,257,422
Department of Energy laboratories' liabilities 283,104 115,164
Other noncurrent liabilities 511,346 454,106 18,658 17,246
Noncurrent liabilities 24,931,044 21,289,388 164,833 164,578
Total liabilities 34,104,318 30,047,869 485,155 570,556
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 11,359,688 11,161,810
Reserved for minority interests 46,875 31,418
Restricted:
Nonexpendable:
Endowments and gifts 1,057,187 1,034,662 2,586,490 2,440,564
Expendable:
Endowments and gifts 5,066,296 5,320,752 2,801,855 2,763,020
Other, including debt service, loans, capital projects and appropriations 438,077 622,974
Unrestricted (99,539) 1,593,156 147,096 206,351
Total net position $17,868,584 $19,764,772 $5,535,441 $5,409,935

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands of dollars)

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
CAMPUS FOUNDATIONS

2012 2011 2012 2011

OPERATING REVENUES

Student tuition and fees, net $ 3,237,126 $ 2,811,121

Grants and contracts, net
Federal 3,347,640 3,388,084
State 546,831 528,543
Private 1,118,132 1,121,146
Local 227,686 211,321

Medical centers, net 6,817,495 6,417,015

Educational activities, net 2,028,495 1,872,008

Auxiliary enterprises, net 1,221,157 1,117,970

Department of Energy laboratories 1,014,199 976,294

Campus foundation private gifts $ 596,242 $ 880,889

Other operating revenues, net 649,577 596,261 4,513 3,585
Total operating revenues 20,208,338 19,039,763 600,755 884,474

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and wages 10,994,319 10,269,912

UCRP benefits 1,885,003 1,681,138

Retiree health benefits 1,498,962 1,754,620

Other employee benefits 2,238,582 2,058,115

Scholarships and fellowships 598,943 597,350

Utilities 279,795 280,995

Supplies and materials 2,381,963 2,107,881

Depreciation and amortization 1,477,281 1,404,837

Department of Energy laboratories 1,007,804 970,054

Campus foundation grants 559,301 496,704

Other operating expenses 3,051,504 3,028,822 58,562 16,548
Total operating expenses 25,414,156 24,153,724 617,863 513,252
Operating income (loss) (5,205,818) (5,113,961) (17,108) 371,222

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State educational appropriations 1,963,578 2,650,545

State financing appropriations 200,123 202,241

State hospital fee grants 8,619 143,983

Build America Bonds federal interest subsidies 65,095 52,216

Federal Pell grants 359,408 352,469

Private gifts, net 804,691 816,291

Investment income:

Short Term Investment Pool and other, net 308,972 286,935
Endowment, net 103,158 107,760
Securities lending, net 10,368 11,995 681 723
Campus foundations 52,501 68,574

Net (depreciation) appreciation in fair value of investments (154,828) 1,082,277 (95,308) 550,849

Interest expense (631,619) (572,412)

Loss on disposal of capital assets (93,189) (67,812)

Other nonoperating revenues, net 16,030 7,743 (8,873) 16,608
Net nonoperating revenues 2,960,406 5,074,231 (50,999) 636,754
Income (loss) before other changes in net position (2,245,412) (39,730) (68,107) 1,007,976

OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION

State capital appropriations 139,629 190,009

Capital gifts and grants, net 198,023 247,259

Permanent endowments 11,572 16,155 193,613 218,309
Increase (decrease) in net position (1,896,188) 413,693 125,506 1,226,285

NET POSITION

Beginning of year 19,764,772 19,351,079 5,409,935 4,183,650
End of year $17,868,584 $19,764,772 $5,535,441 $5,409,935

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands of dollars)

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
CAMPUS FOUNDATIONS

2012 2011 2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Student tuition and fees $ 3,245,460 $ 2,808,412
Grants and contracts 5,134,107 5,358,454
Medical centers 6,683,988 6,362,731
Educational activities 1,974,070 1,855,650
Auxiliary enterprises 1,224,355 1,123,930
Collection of loans from students and employees 54,566 53,955
Campus foundation private gifts S 437,414 S 564,720
Payments to employees (11,365,432) (10,224,701)
Payments to suppliers and utilities (5,558,906) (5,321,258)
Payments for UCRP benefits (1,537,354) (1,441,054)
Payments for retiree health benefits (319,634) (270,003)
Payments for other employee benefits (2,296,067) (2,041,528)
Payments for scholarships and fellowships (599,433) (598,578)
Loans issued to students and employees (58,928) (57,482)
Payments to campuses and beneficiaries (561,344) (509,573)
Other receipts (payments) 561,090 402,306 (46,453) (4,284)
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities (2,858,118) (1,989,166) (170,383) 50,863
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State educational appropriations 1,971,482 2,650,619
Federal Pell grants 363,851 351,664
State hospital fee grants 8,619 143,983
Gifts received for other than capital purposes:
Private gifts for endowment purposes 12,677 11,516 171,082 185,894
Other private gifts 776,512 759,352
Receipt of retiree health contributions from UCRP 33,794 26,254
Payment of retiree health contributions to UCRHBT (36,288) (25,451)
Receipts from UCRHBT 309,583 288,929
Payments for retiree health benefits made on behalf of UCRHBT (310,239) (289,573)
Student direct lending receipts 993,679 956,941
Student direct lending payments (993,677) (956,941)
Proceeds from debt issuance 1,200,000
Commercial paper financing:
Proceeds from issuance 740,530 19,888
Payments of principal (236,795) (16,250)
Interest paid on debt (8,241)
Other receipts 52,999 1,351 3,362 1,884
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 4,878,486 3,922,282 174,444 187,778
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Commercial paper financing:
Proceeds from issuance 130,265 590,431
Payments of principal (111,000) (202,069)
Interest paid (1,419) (1,472)
State capital appropriations 180,389 131,114
State financing appropriations 11,355 2,977
Build America Bonds federal interest subsidies 63,843 50,763
Capital gifts and grants 174,898 149,571
Proceeds from debt issuance 1,765,934 1,984,722
Proceeds from the sale of capital assets 1,306 3,962
Proceeds from insurance recoveries 4,013
Purchase of capital assets (2,929,630) (2,491,186)
Refinancing or prepayment of outstanding debt (276,893) (412,875)
Scheduled principal paid on debt and capital leases (434,601) (356,788)
Interest paid on debt and capital leases (857,923) (564,890)
Collateral paid under interest rate swap (7,230)
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities (2,290,706) (1,111,727)

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS continued

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands of dollars) UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA CAMPUS FOUNDATIONS
2012 2011 2012 2011
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 61,716,393 60,743,229 1,098,009 1,265,141
Purchase of investments (61,914,030) (61,938,621) (1,157,991) (1,566,293)
Investment income, net of investment expenses 420,109 406,783 52,997 69,250
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 222,472 (788,609) (6,985) (231,902)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (47,866) 32,780 (2,924) 6,739
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 181,130 148,350 104,220 97,481
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 133,264 $ 181,130 $ 101,296 $104,220
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH USED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ (5,205,818) $(5,113,961) $ (17,108) $ 371,222
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization expense 1,477,281 1,404,837
Noncash gifts (49,251) (153,406)
Expense for doubtful accounts 322,978 279,131 (9,554) 45,511
Change in assets and liabilities:
Investments (825) (793)
Accounts receivable (637,346) (442,201) (180) 4,346
Pledges receivable (77,766) (212,569)
Investments held by trustees (33,971) (67,243)
Inventories (10,234) 175
Other assets (55,500) (43,631) (7,664) (750)
Accounts payable 80,635 (89,398) 1,712 (93)
Accrued salaries (374,782) 79,806
Employee benefits 47,827 219,963
Unearned revenue (14,995) (11,119) 1,367 2,360
Self-insurance 10,100 3,121
Obligations to life beneficiaries (8,319) (10,543)
Obligation to UCRP 193,876 124,048
Obligations for retiree health benefits 1,190,256 1,483,618
Other liabilities 151,525 183,688 (2,795) 5,578
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $(2,858,118) $(1,989,166) $ (170,383) $ 50,863
SUPPLEMENTAL NONCASH ACTIVITIES INFORMATION
Capital assets acquired through capital leases $ 80,466 $ 39,723
Capital assets acquired with a liability at year-end 57,152 86,997
Change in fair value of interest rate swaps classified as hedging derivatives (22,404) 16,990
Gifts of capital assets 58,152 78,364 $ 145 $ 105
Other noncash gifts 29,894 38,749 71,367 230,634
Proceeds from lease revenue bonds issued 337,250
Debt service for, or refinancing of, lease revenue bonds
Principal paid (104,200) (98,890)
Interest paid (119,648) (114,892)
Interest added to principal 905 373
Beneficial interest in charitable remainder trust 3,249 1,679

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT TRUST
STATEMENTS OF PLANS’ AND TRUST’S FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

At June 30,2012 and 2011 (in thousands of dollars)

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

RETIREMENT SYSTEM RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT TRUST TOTAL UCRS AND UCRHBT
(UCRS) (UCRHBT)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
ASSETS
Investments $ 54,408,678 $54,218,018 $ 65,053 $ 27,795 $ 54,473,731 $ 54,245,813
Participants’interests in mutual funds 4,426,842 4,488,491 4,426,842 4,488,491
Investment of cash collateral 7,545,438 7,729,073 7,545,438 7,729,073
Participant 403(b) loans 146,055 139,424 146,055 139,424
Accounts receivable:
Contributions from University and affiliates 355,045 301,070 4,196 20,782 359,241 321,852
Investment income 95,747 95,301 5 95,747 95,306
Securities sales and other 968,561 111,617 2,287 3,418 970,848 115,035
Prepaid insurance premiums 23,037 21,919 23,037 21,919
Total assets 67,946,366 67,082,994 94,573 73,919 68,040,939 67,156,913
LIABILITIES
Payable to University 5,054 2,646 5,054 2,646
Payable for securities purchased 1,893,585 920,248 1,893,585 920,248
Member withdrawals, refunds and other payables 44,557 217,910 44,557 217,910
Collateral held for securities lending 7,542,664 7,729,038 7,542,664 7,729,038
Total liabilities 9,480,806 8,867,196 5,054 2,646 9,485,860 8,869,842
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST
Members' defined benefit plan benefits 41,868,728 41,940,183 41,868,728 41,940,183
Participants’ defined contribution plan benefits 16,596,832 16,275,615 16,596,832 16,275,615
Retiree health benefits 89,519 71,273 89,519 71,273
Total net position held in trust $58,465,560 $58,215,798 $89,519 $71,273 $58,555,079 $58,287,071

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA RETIREMENT SYSTEM AND RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT TRUST
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PLANS’ AND TRUST’S FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 (in thousands of dollars) UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
RETIREMENT SYSTEM RETIREE HEALTH BENEFIT TRUST TOTAL UCRS AND UCRHBT
(UCRS) (UCRHBT)
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
ADDITIONS (REDUCTIONS)
Contributions:
Members and employees $ 1,243,918 $ 1,010,260 $ 1,243918 $ 1,010,260
Retirees $ 36,428 $ 28,085 36,428 28,085
University 1,857,711 1,683,632 293,101 259,757 2,150,812 1,943,389
Total contributions 3,101,629 2,693,892 329,529 287,842 3,431,158 2,981,734
Investment income (expense), net:
Net (depreciation) appreciation in fair value of investments (977,490) 8,541,574 (977,490) 8,541,574
Interest, dividends and other investment income 1,235,940 1,267,034 14 84 1,235,954 1,267,118
Securities lending income 64,352 72,042 64,352 72,042
Securities lending fees and rebates (12,093) (22,770) (12,093) (22,770)
Total investment income, net 310,709 9,857,880 14 84 310,723 9,857,964
Interest income from contributions receivable 3,652 4,226 3,652 4,226
Total additions 3,415,990 12,555,998 329,543 287,926 3,745,533 12,843,924
DEDUCTIONS
Benefit payments:
Retirement payments 1,607,010 1,486,546 1,607,010 1,486,546
Member withdrawals 93,992 78,776 93,992 78,776
Cost-of-living adjustments 307,190 279,937 307,190 279,937
Lump sum cashouts 187,799 200,907 187,799 200,907
Preretirement surivor payments 38,545 35,931 38,545 35,931
Disability payments 35,189 35,298 35,189 35,298
Death payments 8,717 9,128 8,717 9,128
Participant withdrawals 846,375 860,562 846,375 860,562
Total benefit payments 3,124,817 2,987,085 3,124,817 2,987,085
Insurance premiums:
Insured plans 259,393 234,204 259,393 234,204
Self-insured plans 30,500 28,781 30,500 28,781
Medicare Part B reimbursements 18,759 21,025 18,759 21,025
Total insurance premiums, net 308,652 284,010 308,652 284,010
Expenses:
Plan administration 35,993 35,427 2,645 1,997 38,638 37,424
Other 5,418 4,097 5,418 4,097
Total expenses 41,411 39,524 2,645 1,997 44,056 41,521
Total deductions 3,166,228 3,026,609 311,297 286,007 3,477,525 3,312,616
Increase in net position held in trust 249,762 9,529,389 18,246 1,919 268,008 9,531,308
NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST
Beginning of year 58,215,798 48,686,409 71,273 69,354 58,287,071 48,755,763
End of year $58,465,560 $58,215,798 $ 89,519 $ 71,273 $58,555,079 $58,287,071

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA

Notes to Financial Statements

Years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

ORGANIZATION

The University of California (the University) was founded in 1868 as a public, state-supported institution. The California
State Constitution provides that the University shall be a public trust administered by the corporation, “The Regents of the
University of California,” which is vested with full powers of organization and government, subject only to such legislative
control necessary to ensure the security of its funds and compliance with certain statutory and administrative requirements.
The majority of the 26-member independent governing board (The Regents) is appointed by the governor and approved by
the state Senate. Various University programs and capital outlay projects are funded through appropriations from the state’s
annual Budget Act. The University’s financial statements are discretely presented in the state’s general purpose financial
statements as a component unit.

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Financial Reporting Entity

The University’s financial statements include the accounts of ten campuses, five medical centers, a statewide agricultural
extension program and the operations of most student government or associated student organizations as part of the primary
financial reporting entity because The Regents has certain fiduciary responsibility for these organizations. In addition,

the financial position and operating results of certain other legally separate organizations are included in the University’s
financial reporting entity on a blended basis if The Regents is determined to be financially accountable for the organization.
Organizations that are not significant or financially accountable to the University, such as booster and alumni organizations are
not included in the reporting entity. However, cash invested with the University by these organizations, along with the related
liability, is included in the statement of net position. The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position excludes
the activities associated with these organizations.

The University has ten legally separate, tax-exempt, affiliated campus foundations. The combined financial statements of the
University of California campus foundations (campus foundations) are presented discretely in the University’s financial
statements because of the nature and significance of their relationship with the University, including their ongoing financial
support of the University. Campus foundations may invest all or a portion of their investments in University-managed
investment pools. Securities in these investment pools are included in the University’s securities lending program. Accordingly,
the campus foundations’ investments in University-managed investment pools and their allocated share of the securities lending
activities have been excluded from the University’s financial statements and displayed in the campus foundations’ column.
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Specific assets and liabilities and all revenues and expenses associated with the Lawrence Berkeley National Laboratory (LBNL),
a major United States Department of Energy (DOE) national laboratory operated and managed by the University under
contract directly with the DOE, are included in the financial statements.

The Regents has fiduciary responsibility for the University of California Retirement System (UCRS) that includes two defined
benefit plans, the University of California Retirement Plan (UCRP) and the University of California Public Employees’
Retirement System (PERS) Voluntary Early Retirement Incentive Plan (PERS-VERIP), and four defined contribution plans

in the University of California Retirement Savings Program (UCRSP), consisting of the Defined Contribution Plan (DC Plan),
the Supplemental Defined Contribution Plan (SDC Plan), the Tax-Deferred 403(b) Plan (403(b) Plan) and the 457(b) Deferred
Compensation Plan (457(b) Plan). As a result, the UCRS statements of plans’ fiduciary net position and changes in plans’
fiduciary net position are shown separately in the University’s financial statements.

The Regents also has fiduciary responsibility for the University of California Retiree Health Benefit Trust (UCRHBT).

The UCRHBT statements of trust’s fiduciary net position and changes in trust’s fiduciary net position are shown separately
in the University’s financial statements. UCRHBT allows certain University locations and affiliates, primarily campuses
and medical centers that share the risks, rewards and costs of providing for retiree health benefits, to fund such benefits on
a cost-sharing basis and accumulate funds on a tax-exempt basis under an arrangement segregated from University assets.
The Regents serves as Trustee of UCRHBT and has the authority to amend or terminate the Trust.

Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The University follows
accounting principles issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, effective for the University’s
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011. This Statement modifies the existing requirements for the assessment of component units
that should be included in the financial statements of the University. Implementation of Statement No. 61 had no effect on
the University’s net position or changes in net position for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows

of Resources, and Net Position, effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012; however, the University early
adopted this Statement effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011. This Statement modifies the presentation of deferred
inflows and deferred outflows in the financial statements. The effect of the changes from the implementation of Statement

No. 63 on the University’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2011 2011
Previously Issued Change As Revised
Other noncurrent assets $ 276,352 $ (47,092) $ 229,260
Noncurrent assets 40,453,777 (47,092) 40,406,685
Total assets $ 49,812,641 (47,092) 49,765,549
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows from interest rate swap agreements 47,092 47,092
Total deferred outflow of resources $ 47,092 $ 47,092

The adoption of Statement No. 63 did not result in any adjustments to the financial statements for the campus foundations,
UCRS or UCRHBT.

In June 2011, the GASB issued Statement No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Application of Hedge Accounting Termination
Provisions, effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012; however, the University early adopted this Statement
effective for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2011. This Statement clarifies the existing requirements for the termination of
hedge accounting. Implementation of Statement No. 64 had no effect on the University’s net position or changes in net position
for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011.
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The significant accounting policies of the University are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents. The University and campus foundations consider all balances in demand deposit accounts to be
cash. The University classifies all other highly liquid cash equivalents as short-term investments. Certain campus foundations
classify their deposits in the University’s Short Term Investment Pool as a cash equivalent.

Investments. Investments are recorded at fair value. Securities are generally valued at the last sale price on the last business
day of the fiscal year, as quoted on a recognized exchange or utilizing an industry standard pricing service, when available.
Securities for which no sale was reported as of the close of the last business day of the fiscal year are valued at the quoted
bid price of a dealer who regularly trades in the security being valued. Certain securities may be valued on a basis of a price
provided by a single source.

As a result of inactive or illiquid markets, certain investments in non-agency mortgage-backed fixed-income securities are
valued on the basis of their estimated future principal and interest payments using appropriate risk-adjusted discount rates.
The University believes this approximates the fair value of these investments.

Investments also include private equities, absolute return funds, real estate, real asset and certain corporate asset-backed
securities. Private equities include venture capital partnerships, buyout and international funds. Interests in private equity and
real estate partnerships are based upon valuations provided by the general partners of the respective partnerships as of March
31, adjusted for cash receipts, cash disbursements and securities distributions through June 30. Investments in absolute return
partnerships are valued as of May 31, adjusted for cash receipts and cash disbursements through June 30. Interests in certain
direct investments in real estate are estimated based upon independent appraisals. The University believes the carrying amount
of these financial instruments and real estate is a reasonable estimate of fair value at June 30. Because the private equity,
real estate and absolute return partnerships, along with direct investments in real estate, are not readily marketable, their
estimated value is subject to uncertainty and, therefore, may differ significantly from the value that would be used had a ready
market for such investments existed.

Deposits with the state of California are valued at contract value, which the University believes approximates fair value.

Investments in registered investment companies are valued based upon the reported net asset value of those companies.
Mortgage loans, held as investments, are valued on the basis of their future principal and interest payments, and are discounted
at prevailing interest rates for similar instruments. Insurance contracts are valued at contract value, plus reinvested interest,
which approximates fair value. Estimates of the fair value of interests in externally held irrevocable trusts where the University
is the beneficiary of either the income or the remainder that will not become a permanent endowment upon distribution to the
University are based upon the present value of the expected future income or, if available, the University’s proportional interest
in the fair value of the trust assets.

Investments denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S. dollar equivalents using year-end spot foreign currency
exchange rates. Purchases and sales of investments and their related income are translated at the rate of exchange on the
respective transaction dates. Realized and unrealized gains and losses resulting from foreign currency changes are included

in the University’s statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Investment transactions are recorded on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade date). Realized gains or losses are
recorded as the difference between the proceeds from the sale and the average cost of the investment sold. Dividend income is
recorded on the ex-dividend date and interest income is accrued as earned. Gifts of securities are recorded based on fair value
at the date of donation.

Derivative financial instruments. Derivative instruments are recorded at fair value. Futures contracts, foreign currency
exchange contracts, stock rights and warrants, options and swaptions are valued at the last sales price on the last day of the
fiscal year, as quoted on a recognized exchange or utilizing an industry standard pricing service, when available. Financial
institutions or independent advisors have estimated the fair value of the interest rate swaps and total return swaps using
quoted market prices when available or discounted expected future net cash flows.

The University has entered into interest rate swap agreements to limit the exposure of its variable-rate debt to changes
in market interest rates. Interest rate swap agreements involve the exchange with a counterparty of fixed- and variable-
rate interest payments periodically over the life of the agreement without exchange of the underlying notional principal
amounts. The net differential to be paid or received is recognized over the life of the agreements as an adjustment to
interest expense. The University’s counterparties are major financial institutions.
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Derivatives are recorded at fair value as either assets or liabilities in the statement of net position. Certain derivatives are
determined to be hedging derivatives and designated as either a fair value or cash flow hedge. Under hedge accounting,
changes in the fair value of hedging derivatives are considered to be deferred inflows (for hedging derivatives with positive
fair values) or deferred outflows (for hedging derivatives with negative fair values).

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are not hedging derivatives are recorded as net appreciation or depreciation
of investments in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

Participants’ interests in mutual funds. Participants in the University’s defined contribution retirement plans may invest their
account balances in funds managed by the University’s Chief Investment Officer or in certain mutual funds.

Accounts receivable, net. Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts, include reimbursements due from
state and federal sponsors of externally funded research, patient billings, accrued income on investments and other receivables.
Other receivables include local government and private grants and contracts, educational activities and amounts due from
students, employees and faculty for services.

Pledges receivable, net. Unconditional pledges of private gifts to the University or to the campus foundations in the future,
net of allowance for uncollectible amounts, are recorded as pledges receivable and revenue in the year promised at the
present value of expected cash flows. Conditional pledges, including all pledges of endowments and intentions to pledge,
are recognized as receivables and revenues when the specified conditions are met.

Notes and mortgages receivable, net. Loans to students, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts, are provided from federal
student loan programs and from other University sources. Home mortgage loans, primarily to faculty, are provided from

the University’s Short Term Investment Pool and from other University sources. Mortgage loans provided by the Short Term
Investment Pool are classified as investments and loans provided by other sources are classified as mortgages receivable in the
statement of net position.

Inventories. Inventories, consisting primarily of supplies and merchandise for resale, are valued at cost, typically determined
under the weighted average method, which is not in excess of net realizable value.

DOE national laboratories. The University operates and manages LBNL under a contract directly with the DOE. Specific assets
and liabilities and all revenues and expenses associated with LBNL are included in the financial statements. Other assets,
such as cash, property and equipment and other liabilities of LBNL are owned by the United States government rather
than the University and, therefore, are not included in the statement of net position. The statement of cash flows excludes the
cash flows associated with LBNL other than reimbursements, primarily related to pension and health benefits, since all other
cash transactions are recorded in bank accounts owned by the DOE.

The University is a member in two separate joint ventures, Los Alamos National Security, LLC (LANS), and Lawrence
Livermore National Security, LLC (LLNS), that operate and manage two other DOE laboratories, Los Alamos National
Laboratory (LANL) and Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory (LLNL), respectively, under contracts directly with the
DOE. The University’s investment in LANS and LLNS is accounted for using the equity method. Accordingly, the University’s
statement of net position includes its equity interest in LANS and LLNS, adjusted for the equity in undistributed earnings or
losses and the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position includes its equity in the current earnings or losses
of LANS and LLNS.

The DOE is financially responsible for substantially all of the current and future costs incurred at any of the national laboratories,
including pension and retiree health benefit costs. Accordingly, to the extent there is a liability on the University’s statement

of net position for pension or retiree health obligations related to these laboratories, the University records a receivable from
the DOE. The University’s statement of cash flows includes the cash flows related to DOE reimbursements for pension and/or
health benefits attributable to any of these laboratories.

Capital assets, net. Land, infrastructure, buildings and improvements, intangible assets, equipment, libraries, collections and
special collections are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition, or estimated fair value at the date of donation in the case of
gifts. Estimates of fair value involve assumptions and estimation methods that are uncertain and, therefore, the estimates could
differ from actual value. Intangible assets include easements, land rights, trademarks, patents and other similar arrangements.
Capital leases are recorded at the present value of future minimum lease payments. Significant additions, replacements, major
repairs and renovations to infrastructure and buildings are generally capitalized if the cost exceeds $35,000 and if they have a
useful life of more than one year. Minor renovations are charged to operations. Equipment with a cost in excess of $5,000 and
a useful life of more than one year is capitalized. All costs of land, library collections and special collections are capitalized.
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated economic life of the asset. Equipment under
capital leases is amortized over the estimated useful life of the equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized using
the straight-line method over the shorter of the life of the applicable lease or the economic life of the asset.

Estimated economic lives are generally as follows:

YEARS
Infrastructure 25
Buildings and improvements 15-33
Equipment 2-20
Computer software 3-7
Intangible assets 2 - indefinite
Library books and collections 15

Capital assets acquired through federal grants and contracts where the federal government retains a reversionary interest
are also capitalized and depreciated.

Inexhaustible capital assets, such as land or special collections that are protected, preserved and held for public exhibition,
education or research, including art, museum, scientific and rare book collections, are not depreciated.

Interest on borrowings to finance facilities is capitalized during construction, net of any investment income earned on
tax-exempt borrowings during the temporary investment of project related borrowings.

Unearned revenue. Unearned revenue primarily includes amounts received from grant and contract sponsors that have not
been earned under the terms of the agreement and other revenue billed in advance of the event, such as student tuition and fees
and fees for housing and dining services.

Funds held for others. Funds held for others result from the University or the campus foundations acting as an agent, or
fiduciary, on behalf of organizations that are not significant or financially accountable to the University or campus foundations.

Federal refundable loans. Certain loans to students are administered by the University with funding primarily supported by
the federal government. The University’s statement of net position includes both the notes receivable and the related federal
refundable loan liability representing federal capital contributions owed upon termination of the program.

Self-insurance programs. The University is self-insured for medical malpractice, workers’ compensation, employee health care
and general liability claims. These risks are subject to various claim and aggregate limits, with excess liability coverage provided
by an independent insurer. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable a loss has occurred and the amount of the loss can be
reasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate for claims that have been incurred, but not reported. The estimated
liabilities are based upon an independent actuarial determination of the present value of the anticipated future payments.

Obligations under life income agreements. Obligations under life income agreements represent trusts with living income
beneficiaries where the University has a residual interest. The investments associated with these agreements are recorded at fair
value. The discounted present value of any income beneficiary interest is reported as a liability in the statement of net position.
Gifts subject to such agreements are recorded as revenue, net of the income beneficiary share, at the date of the gift. Actuarial
gains and losses are included in other nonoperating income (expense) in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in
net position. Resources that are expendable upon maturity are classified as restricted, expendable net position; all others are
classified as restricted, nonexpendable net position.

Pollution remediation obligations. Upon an obligating event, the University estimates the components of any expected
pollution remediation costs and recoveries from third parties. The costs, estimated using the expected cash flow technique,
are accrued as a liability. Pollution remediation liabilities generally involve groundwater, soil and sediment contamination at
certain sites where state and other regulatory agencies have indicated that the University is among the responsible parties.
The liabilities are revalued annually and may increase or decrease the cost of recovery from third parties, if any, as a result
of additional information that refines the estimates, or from payments made from revenue sources that support the activity.
There were no expected recoveries at June 30, 2012 and 2011 reducing the pollution remediation liability.
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Net position. Net position is required to be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the following categories:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt. This category includes all of the University’s capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation, reduced by outstanding debt attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Reserved for minority interests. This category includes the net position of legally separate organizations attributable
to other participants.

Restricted. The University and campus foundations classify the net position resulting from transactions with purpose
restrictions as restricted net position until the specific resources are used for the required purpose or for as long as
the provider requires the resources to remain intact.

Nonexpendable. The net position subject to externally-imposed restrictions, which must be retained in perpetuity by
the University or the campus foundations, is classified as nonexpendable net position. This includes the University and
campus foundation permanent endowment funds.

Expendable. The net position whose use by the University or the campus foundations is subject to externally-imposed
restrictions that can be fulfilled by actions of the University or campus foundations pursuant to those restrictions or
that expire by the passage of time are classified as expendable net position.

Unrestricted. The net position that is neither reserved, restricted nor invested in capital assets, net of related debt, are
classified as unrestricted net position. The University’s unrestricted net position may be designated for specific purposes
by management or The Regents. The campus foundations’ unrestricted net position may be designated for specific
purposes by their Boards of Trustees. Substantially all of the University’s unrestricted net position is allocated for academic
and research initiatives or programs, for capital programs or for other purposes.

Expenses are charged to either restricted or unrestricted net position based upon a variety of factors, including consideration
of prior and future revenue sources, the type of expense incurred, the University’s budgetary policies surrounding the various
revenue sources or whether the expense is a recurring cost.

Revenues and expenses. Operating revenues of the University include receipts from student tuition and fees, grants and
contracts for specific operating activities and sales and services from medical centers, educational activities and auxiliary
enterprises. Operating expenses incurred in conducting the programs and services of the University are presented in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as operating activities. The University’s equity in current
earnings or losses of LANS and LLNS is also an operating transaction.

Certain significant revenues relied upon and budgeted for fundamental operational support of the core instructional
mission of the University are mandated by the GASB to be recorded as nonoperating revenues, including state educational
appropriations, certain federal grants for student financial aid, private gifts and investment income, since the GASB does
not consider them to be related to the principal operating activities of the University.

Campus foundations are established to financially support the University. Private gifts to campus foundations are recognized
as operating revenues since, in contrast to the University, such contributions are fundamental to the core mission of

the campus foundations. Foundation grants to the University are recognized as operating expenses by the foundations.
Private gift or capital gift revenues associated with campus foundation grants to the University are recorded by the
University as gifts when the foundations transfer the gifts to the University.

Nonoperating revenues and expenses include state educational appropriations, state financing appropriations, state hospital
fee grants, “Build America Bonds” federal interest subsidies, federal Pell grants, private gifts for other than capital purposes,
investment income, net unrealized appreciation or depreciation in the fair value of investments, interest expense and gain
or loss on the disposal of capital assets.

State capital appropriations, capital gifts and grants and gifts for endowment purposes are classified as other changes
in net position.

Student tuition and fees. Substantially, all student tuition and fees provide for the current operations of the University. A small
portion of the student fees, reported as capital gifts and grants, is required for debt service associated with student union and
recreational centers.

The University recognizes scholarship allowances as the difference between the stated charge for tuition and fees, housing and
dining charges, recreational center and other fees, and the amount that is paid by the student and third parties on behalf of the
student. Payments of financial aid made directly to students are classified as scholarship and fellowship expenses.
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Scholarship allowances are netted in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position for the years ended June
30, 2012 and 2011 as follows:

(in thousands of dollars)

2012 2011
Student tuition and fees S 979,394 S 830,497
Auxiliary enterprises 171,663 185,079
Other operating revenues 21,014 20,652
Scholarship allowances $1,172,071 $1,036,228

State appropriations. The state of California provides appropriations to the University on an annual basis. State educational
appropriations are recognized as nonoperating revenue; however, the related expenses are incurred to support either
educational operations or other specific operating purposes. State financing appropriations provide for principal and interest
payments associated with lease-purchase agreements with the State Public Works Board and are also reported as nonoperating
revenue. State appropriations for capital projects are recorded as revenue under other changes in net position when the related
expenditures are incurred. Special state appropriations for AIDS, tobacco and breast cancer research are reported as grant
operating revenue.

Grant and contract revenue. The University receives grant and contract revenue from governmental and private sources.
The University recognizes revenue associated with the direct costs of sponsored programs as the related expenditures
are incurred. Recovery of facilities and administrative costs of federally sponsored programs is at cost reimbursement
rates negotiated with the University’s federal cognizant agency, the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services.

For the year ended June 30, 2012, the facilities and administrative cost recovery totaled $997.8 million, $748.5 million
from federally sponsored programs and $249.3 million from other sponsors. For the year ended June 30, 2011,

the facilities and administrative cost recovery totaled $992.0 million, $752.0 million from federally sponsored programs
and $240.0 million from other sponsors.

Medical center revenue. Medical center revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients and
third-party payors, including Medicare, Medi-Cal and others, for services rendered, as well as estimated retroactive
adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors. Laws and regulations governing Medicare and
Medi-Cal are complex and subject to interpretation. Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the
period the related services are rendered and adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. It is reasonably
possible that estimated amounts accrued could change significantly based upon settlement, or as additional information
becomes available.

UCRP benefits and obligation to UCRP. The University’s cost for campus and medical center UCRP benefits expense is based
upon the annual required contribution to UCRP, as actuarially determined. Contributions to UCRP are made based upon rates
or amounts determined by The Regents, and reduce the University’s obligation to UCRP in the statement of net position.

Both current employees and retirees at LBNL participate in UCRP. The University makes contributions to UCRP for LBNL
employees and is reimbursed by the DOE based upon rates that are identical to those authorized by The Regents for campus
and medical center employees. The University also makes contributions to UCRP for LANL and LLNL retirees and terminated
vested members, whose benefits were retained in UCRP at the time the joint ventures were formed. The annual required
contribution for the LANL and LLNL is actuarially determined based upon a contractual arrangement with the DOE that
incorporates a formula targeted to maintain the LANL and LLNL segments within UCRP at a 100 percent funded level. The
University is reimbursed by the DOE for these contributions. These contributions and reimbursements from the DOE are
included as DOE laboratory expense and revenue, respectively in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position.

The University records a receivable or payable from the DOE for the amounts that are due under the DOE contracts for

pension benefits attributable to the DOE laboratories.

Retiree health benefits and obligations for retiree health benefits. The University’s cost for campus and medical center retiree
health benefits expense is based upon the annual required contribution to the retiree health plan, as actuarially determined.
Campus and medical center contributions toward retiree health benefits, at rates determined by the University, are made to
UCRHBT and reduce the obligation for retiree health benefits in the statement of net position.
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LBNL participates in the University’s retiree health plans. The annual required contribution for LBNL is actuarially determined
independently from the University’s campuses and medical centers, and included with the DOE laboratory expense in the
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. The University directly pays health care insurers and administrators
amounts currently due under the University’s retiree health benefit plans for retirees who previously worked at LBNL, and is
reimbursed by the DOE. These contributions, in the form of direct payments, also reduce the University’s obligation for retiree
health benefits in the statement of net position. The reimbursement from the DOE is included as DOE laboratory revenue in
the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

The University records a receivable from the DOE for the DOE’s portion of the University’s obligation for retiree health benefits
attributable to LBNL. The University does not have any obligation for LANL or LLNL retiree health benefit costs since they do
not participate in the University’s retiree health plans.

Campus and medical center contributions toward retiree health costs made to UCRHBT, the University’s LBNL-related
payments made directly to health care insurers and administrators and the corresponding reimbursements from the DOE
are operating activities in the statement of cash flows. Cash flows resulting from retiree health contributions from retirees
are shown as noncapital financing activities in the statement of cash flows.

University of California Retiree Health Benefit Trust. UCRHBT receives the University’s contributions toward retiree
health benefits from campuses, medical centers and University affiliates. The University receives retiree health contributions
from University affiliates and campus and medical center retirees that are deducted from their UCRP benefit payments.

The University also remits these retiree contributions to UCRHBT.

The University acts as a third-party administrator on behalf of UCRHBT and pays health care insurers and administrators
amounts currently due under the University’s retiree health benefit plans for retirees who previously worked at a campus
or medical center. UCRHBT reimburses the University for these amounts.

LBNL does not participate in UCRHBT; therefore, the DOE has no interest in the Trust’s assets.

Compensated absences. The University accrues annual leave, including employer-related costs, for employees at rates based
upon length of service and job classification and compensatory time based upon job classification and hours worked.

Endowment spending. Under provisions of California law, the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act allows
for investment income, as well as a portion of realized and unrealized gains, to be expended for the operational requirements
of University programs.

Tax exemption. The University is recognized as a tax-exempt organization under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue
Code (IRC). Because the University is a state institution, related income received by the University is also exempt from federal
tax under IRC Section 115(a). In addition, the University is exempt from state income taxes imposed under the California
Revenue and Taxation Code. UCRS plans are qualified under IRC Section 401(a) and the related trusts are tax-exempt under
Section 501(c)(3). The campus foundations are exempt under Section 501(c)(3). Income received by UCRHBT is tax-exempt
under Section 115(a).

Use of estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenditures during the reporting period. Although management believes the estimates and assumptions are
reasonable, they are based upon information available at the time the estimate or judgment is made and actual amounts could
differ from those estimates.

New accounting pronouncements. In November 2010, the GASB issued Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Service Concession Arrangements, effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2012. This Statement requires

the University to report the activities for certain public-private partnerships as service concession arrangements in the financial
statements. Service concession arrangements are recorded when the arrangements meet certain criteria which include building
and operating a facility, obtaining the right to collect fees from third parties, and transferring ownership of the facility to

the University at the end of the arrangement. The University is evaluating the effect that Statement No. 60 will have on its
financial statements.
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In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, effective for the
University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013. This Statement reclassifies, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows
of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. The University is evaluating the effect
that Statement No. 65 will have on its financial statements.

In March 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections - 2012 — An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 10
and No. 62, effective for the University’s fiscal year beginning July 1, 2013. This Statement resolves conflicting guidance that
resulted from the issuance of two pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type
Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB
and AICPA Pronouncements. The University is evaluating the effect that Statement No. 66 will have on its financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, effective for the University’s fiscal year
beginning July 1, 2013. This Statement revises existing standards for financial reporting for pension plans by changing the
approach to measuring the net pension liability. The net pension liability is measured as the total pension liability, less the
amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The total pension liability is determined based upon discounting
projected benefit payments based on the benefit terms and legal agreements existing at the pension plan’s fiscal year end.
Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted using a single rate that reflects the expected rate of return on
investments, to the extent that plan assets are available to pay benefits, and a tax-exempt, high-quality municipal bond rate
when plan assets are not available. Statement No. 67 will affect the information presented in the footnotes to the financial
statements and required supplementary information for UCRP. The University is evaluating the effect that Statement No. 67
will have on its financial statements.

In June 2012, the GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, eftective for the University’s
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014. This Statement revises existing standards for measuring and reporting pension liabilities for
pension plans provided by the University to its employees. This Statement requires recognition of a liability equal to the net
pension liability, which is measured as the total pension liability, less the amount of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position.
The total pension liability is determined based upon discounting projected benefit payments based on the benefit terms and
legal agreements existing at the pension plan’s fiscal year end. Projected benefit payments are required to be discounted using
a single rate that reflects the expected rate of return on investments, to the extent that plan assets are available to pay benefits,
and a tax-exempt, high-quality municipal bond rate when plan assets are not available. This Statement requires that most
changes in the net pension liability be included in pension expense in the period of the change. As of June 30, 2012, the
University reported an obligation to UCRP of $1.9 billion, representing unfunded contributions to UCRP based upon

the University’s funding policy. Under Statement No. 68, The University’s obligation to UCRP is expected to increase.

The University is evaluating the effect that Statement No. 68 will have on its financial statements.
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1. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The University maintains centralized management for substantially all of its cash and cash equivalents. Cash in demand deposit
accounts is minimized by sweeping available cash balances into investment accounts on a daily basis.

Under University policy, deposits are only held at financial institutions that maintain an issuer rating on long term debt
of A3 or higher by Moody’s, A- or higher by Standard & Poor’s or an Asset Peer Group rating of 65 or higher as defined
by Sheshunoff Bank Rating Reports. In 2012, ratings for one of the University’s banks were lowered below these thresholds.
The University approved a temporary exception for this institution and continues to monitor the institution’s financial
condition. At June 30, 2012 and 2011, the carrying amount of the University’s demand deposits, generally held in five
nationally recognized banking institutions, was $133.3 million and $181.1 million, respectively, compared to bank balances
of $99.0 million and $135.7 million, respectively. Deposits in transit and cash awaiting investment are the primary differences.
Bank balances in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits are collateralized by U.S. government
securities held in the name of the bank.

The University does not have significant exposure to foreign currency risk in demand deposit accounts. Accounts held in
foreign countries maintain minimum operating balances with the intent to reduce potential foreign exchange risk while
providing an adequate level of liquidity to meet the obligations of the academic programs established abroad. The equivalent
U.S. dollar balances required to support research groups and education abroad programs in foreign countries was $2.7 million
at June 30, 2012 and 2011.

The carrying amount of the campus foundations’ cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2012 and 2011 was $101.3 million
and $104.2 million, respectively, compared to bank balances of $67.2 million and $74.4 million, respectively. Deposits in transit
and cash awaiting investment are the primary differences. Included in bank balances are deposits in the University’s Short Term
Investment Pool of $31.7 million and $28.9 million at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, with the remaining uncollateralized
bank balances insured by the FDIC. The campus foundations do not have exposure to foreign currency risk in their cash and
cash equivalents.

2. INVESTMENTS

The Regents, as the governing Board, is responsible for the oversight of the University’s, UCRS’ and UCRHBTs investments
and establishes investment policy, which is carried out by the Chief Investment Officer. These investments are associated

with the Short Term Investment Pool (STIP), Total Return Investment Pool (TRIP), General Endowment Pool (GEP), UCRS,
UCRHBT and other investment pools managed by the Chief Investment Officer, or are separately invested. Pursuant to The
Regents’ policies on campus foundations, the Board of Trustees for each campus foundation may determine that all or a portion
of their investments will be managed by the Chief Investment Officer. Asset allocation guidelines are provided to the campus
foundations by the Investment Committee of The Regents.

STIP allows participants to maximize the returns on their short-term cash balances by taking advantage of the economies

of scale of investing in a large pool with a broad range of maturities and is managed to maximize current earned income.
Cash to provide for payroll, construction expenditures and other operating expenses for campuses and medical centers is
invested in STIP. The available cash in UCRS or endowment investment pools awaiting investment, or cash for administrative
expenses, is also invested in STIP.

Investments authorized by The Regents for STIP include fixed-income securities with a maximum maturity of five and
one-half years. In addition, for STIP, The Regents has also authorized loans, primarily to faculty members residing in
California, under the University’s Mortgage Origination Program with terms up to 40 years.

TRIP allows participant campuses the opportunity to maximize the return on their long-term working capital by taking
advantage of the economies of scale of investing in a large pool across a broad range of asset classes. TRIP is managed to a total
return objective and is intended to supplement STIP. Investments authorized by The Regents for TRIP include a diversified
portfolio of equity and fixed-income securities.

GEDP is an investment pool in which a large number of individual endowments participate in order to benefit from diversification
and economies of scale. GEP is a balanced portfolio and the primary investment vehicle for endowed gift funds. Where donor
agreements place constraints on allowable investments, assets associated with endowments are invested in accordance with the
terms of the agreements.
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Other investment pools primarily facilitate annuity and life income arrangements. Separate investments are those that cannot
be pooled due to investment restrictions or income requirements, or represent the University’s estimated interest in externally
held irrevocable trusts.

Investments authorized by The Regents for GEP, UCRS, other investment pools and separate investments include equity
securities, fixed-income securities and certain other asset classes. The equity portion of the investment portfolios include both
domestic and foreign common and preferred stocks which may be included in actively or passively managed strategies, along
with a modest exposure to private equities. The University’s investment portfolios may include foreign currency denominated
equity securities. The fixed-income portion of the investment portfolios may include both domestic and foreign securities,
along with certain securitized investments, including mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities. Fixed-income investment
guidelines permit the use of futures and options on fixed-income instruments in the ongoing management of the portfolios.
Real estate investments are authorized for both GEP and UCRS. Absolute return strategies, which may incorporate short sales,
plus derivative positions to implement or hedge an investment position, are also authorized for GEP and UCRS.

Derivative instruments, including futures, forward contracts, options and swap contracts are authorized for portfolio rebalancing
in accordance with The Regents’ asset allocation policy and as substitutes for physical securities. They are not used for
speculative purposes.

The Regents has also authorized certain employee account balances in defined contribution plans included as part of UCRS’
investments to be invested in mutual funds. The participants’ interests in mutual funds is not managed by the Chief Investment
Officer and totaled $4.4 billion and $4.5 billion at June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In